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For Manufacturing Bronze Plaques 
Questions and Answers 

October 9, 2019 
 
1. We are located in a state with anti-LGBT (lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
transgender) laws. Would we be able to enter into a contract with the 
City and County of San Francisco if selected as the Contractor through 
this Request For Proposals? 
 
No. On October 14, 2016, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors passed 
Ordinance No. 189-16, which places a ban on City contracts involving states 
with anti-LGBT laws. The Ordinance declares that the City shall not enter into 
any contract with a Contractor that has its United States headquarters in a 
state on the Covered State List or where any or all of the work on the 
Contract will be performed in a state on the Covered State List. The Covered 
State List is reviewed on a semiannual basis and is posted online at 
https://sfgsa.org/chapter-12x-anti-lgbt-state-ban-list.  
 
The list below indicates all the states currently on the Covered State List as of 
October 9, 2019: 
 
• Alabama (effective 6/30/2017) 
• Iowa (effective 10/4/2019) 
• Kansas (effective 2/11/2017) 
• Kentucky (effective 6/30/2017) 
• Mississippi (effective 2/11/2017) 
• North Carolina (effective 2/11/2017) 
• Oklahoma (effective 11/1/2018) 
• South Carolina (effective 04/15/2019) 
• South Dakota (effective 3/14/2017) 
• Tennessee (effective 2/ 11/2017) 
• Texas (effective 9/1/2017) 
 
2. Designing, making samples and production are no problem, however, 
paperwork and installation are not something we could do. How should 
we proceed with our proposal? 
 
As noted on page 4 of the Request For Proposals, the City reserves the right 
to contract for all or part of the tasks listed. Proposers should indicate in their 
proposal what they are and are not able to provide. Not being to provide all 
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services indicated in the RFP may factor into the scoring of one’s proposal, 
but it would not necessarily preclude a company from being selected as the 
Contractor.  
 
3. We design and ship plaques, but we do not install them. Will we be 
required to install plaques as stated in the RFP? 
 
RFP section 2.B.7. (“Install Plaques”) states that the selected Contractor shall 
install the plaques of the exterior or interior of buildings if the Legacy 
Business or SFOSB are not able to perform this task. Proposers should 
indicate in their proposal what they are and are not able to provide. 
 
4. We are in another state. Will we be required to assist with building 
permits, other than providing drawings and renderings, as stated in the 
RFP?  
 
RFP Section 2.4. (“Building Permits”) states that the selected Contractor shall 
assist in getting building permits for the bronze plaques, including any 
needed drawings or renderings. If a Proposer is not able to provide services 
regarding the building permit beyond providing drawings and renderings, this 
should be indicated in the RFP proposal.  
 
Before proposing to provide products or services under this RFP, please 
confirm that your firm is not headquartered or performing work in a state that 
is banned from doing business with the City under San Francisco 
Administrative Code Chapter 12X. You can find the current list of banned 
states online at: https://sfgsa.org/chapter-12x-anti-lgbt-state-ban-list. 
 
5. Does the total scope and budget for this project have to include the 
cost of installation and acquiring permits? Are those considered 
"associated tasks"? 
 
Per section 4.B. of the RFP (page 8), the anticipated budget for the 
manufacturing of bronze plaques and all associated tasks identified in the 
Scope of Work is $95,000 through June 30, 2024. “Associated tasks” in this 
sentence are all costs in addition to the manufacturing of the plaques, such 
as creation of the how-to guide, delivery charges, installation, etc. The total 
scope and budget in the proposal should include all services proposed by the 
Proposer. 
 
6. Are you wanting us to send the quote to you directly or through the 
paperwork linked? 
 
Applicants should respond to the Request For Proposals by responding to all 
the questions in the Proposal Template (“Attachment A”) and submitting it to 
legacybusiness@sfgov.org by the submission deadline indicated in the RFP. 
 
7. If we simply supply plaques (ship them to you or your Legacy 
Businesses), but do not perform installations, will our employees be 
subject to the Minimum Compensation Ordinance (MCO)? 
 

https://sfgsa.org/chapter-12x-anti-lgbt-state-ban-list
mailto:legacybusiness@sfgov.org


 

RFP section 8.C. (“Minimum Compensation Ordinance (MCO)”) states that 
the successful Proposer will be required to agree to comply fully with and be 
bound by the provisions of the Minimum Compensation Ordinance (MCO), as 
set forth in San Francisco Administrative Code Chapter 12P. Generally, this 
Ordinance requires contractors to provide employees covered by the 
Ordinance who do work funded under the contract with hourly gross 
compensation and paid and unpaid time off that meet certain minimum 
requirements. 
 
A Contractor that simply supplies plaques and does not perform installations 
would not be subject to the MCO. Your firm will still be required to file a 
Minimum Compensation Ordinance Declaration (if you have not already done 
so) to confirm you have reviewed the Ordinance and are prepared to comply 
in the event that your contract is amended to include services. Please contact 
the City’s Office of Labor Standards Enforcement at MCO@sfgov.org or 
(415) 554-7903 if you have any questions about this standard contracting 
requirement. 
 
8. If we simply supply plaques (ship them to you or your Legacy 
Businesses), but do not perform installations, will our employees be 
subject to the First Source Hiring Program (FSHP). 
 
RFP Section 8 Item D (“First Source Hiring Program (FSHP)”) states that if 
the contract is for more than $50,000, then the First Source Hiring Program 
(Admin. Code Chapter 83) may apply. Generally, this ordinance requires 
contractors to notify the First Source Hiring Program of available entry-level 
jobs and provide the Workforce Development System with the first 
opportunity to refer qualified individuals for employment.  
 
If your organization has a presence in San Francisco and the resulting 
contract exceeds $50,000, you will be required to comply with the First 
Source Hiring Ordinance. For more information on compliance requirements, 
contact the First Source Hiring Administrator at business.services@sfgov.org 
or (415) 701-4848.  
 
9. Will there be a definite quantity for the first order, from which a 
quantity discount can be derived? (Page 4) 
 
The Office of Small Business will be doing outreach to the Legacy 
Businesses simultaneously to this RFP to determine which businesses want 
plaques and how many each business wants. The outreach has not yet 
occurred, so the order quantity will not be known prior to the RFP proposal 
deadline.  
 
Per the RFP, please include the cost per plaque and any multi-plaque 
discounts (e.g., ordering 10-20 plaques at the same time or 50+ plaques at 
the same time). Include costs for 12-inch, 15-inch and 18-inch plaques. 
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10. Is there a preferred overall thickness of the plaques? The thickness 
for cast bronze plaques is approximately 1/4”. Both 1/4” and 1/8” are 
available for etched bronze plaques. (Page 7) 
 
The preferred overall thickness of the plaques is 1/4”. 
 
11. What is the timeline for the how-to manual? Is it to be sent at the 
time of proposal or before the first shipment? (Page 7) 
 
The order of the projects listed in section 2.B. on page 7 of the RFP are the 
order the projects should occur. Creation of the how-to manual will occur prior 
to the manufacturing of the bronze plaques.  
 
12. In the portfolio of work of the Proposer, will projects showing other 
types of plaques be considered acceptable? (Page 9) 
 
Proposers are welcome to show three sample projects of any type. However, 
please keep in mind this section is worth 20 points, so it is possibly in the 
Proposers’ best interest to show sample projects that are similar to the 
bronze plaque being requested through this RFP. 
 
13. Should Project Costs be itemized, or is it acceptable for the price to 
include of all the components, such as shipping, etc.? (Page 9) 
 
It is acceptable for Proposers to present project costs however the Proposer 
thinks best, including having the project costs include all the components 
(e.g., shipping). However, please keep in mind this section is worth 20 points, 
so it is possibly in the Proposers’ best interest to show itemized costs.  
 
14. Because the duration of the project is several years, will there be 
allowances given by the City if a component of the price (cost of the 
metal, shipping) experiences a cost increase? 
 
Allowances for price increases are negotiable. If year-over-year cost 
increases are something your company would want to negotiate with the City, 
this should be described in your proposal.  
 
15. We understand that no information about company net worth and/or 
proprietary financial data is required to qualify for the grant, but will the 
company to which the grant is awarded be required to provide such 
information after the award, and will that information be made public 
upon request? (Page 12) 
 
No information about the Proposers’ net worth and/or proprietary financial 
data is required for the RFP proposal nor the final contract with the selected 
Contractor. Final RFP proposals for any/all Proposers would be made public 
upon request after the contract with the selected Contractor is fully executed, 
so Proposers should be mindful of the information they provide in their RFP 
proposals. 
 



 

16. What is the approximate total of plaques needing to be made? Is it 
one per company? (so 200 + 60 every year until 2024?) 
 
The total number of plaques to be ordered each year is more dependent 
upon the budget of the Office of Small Business than any other factor. This 
fiscal year (July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020), SFOSB has approximately 
$28,000 available for plaques, with $15,000-20,000 anticipated for plaques 
each subsequent fiscal year through 2024. Annual budgets are not finalized 
until July of each year. 
 
17. Will there be a large number of plaques ordered at one time and then 
smaller quantities in the following years? 
 
Based on the available budget and pent up demand for plaques, it is 
anticipated there may be more plaques ordered the first fiscal year (2019-20) 
than in subsequent fiscal years.  
 
18. Our company is not the foundry for bronze plaques, but we work 
directly with a foundry. May our company submit a proposal? 
 
Yes, your company may submit a proposal, but please make sure to indicate 
your relationship with the foundry in your proposal.  
 
19. Is there a Local Business Enterprise (LBE) rating bonus in the RFP? 
 
Yes. 
 
A) A Micro-LBE and Small-LBE bid discount/rating bonus does apply to the 
procurement of services under this RFP because the anticipated Agreement 
amount is under $10 Million. To obtain the Micro- or Small-LBE bonus, please 
complete Form 2A (CMD Contract Participation Form) or Form 4 (CMD Joint 
Venture Form) found at this weblink: 
https://sfgov.org/cmd/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid=9812. 
 
The City strongly encourages response packages from qualified Micro- and 
Small-LBEs. Pursuant to Chapter 14B of the City’s Administrative Code, the 
following rating bonus will be in effect for the award of this project for any 
proposers who are certified by the Contract Monitoring Division (CMD) as a 
Micro- or Small-LBE, or joint ventures where the joint venture partners are in 
the same discipline and have the specific levels of participation as identified 
below.  
 
Certification applications may be obtained by calling CMD at (415) 581-2310. 
The rating bonus applies at each phase of the selection process. The 
application of the rating bonus is as follows:  
 
1) A 10% discount to an Micro- or Small-LBE; or a joint venture between or 

among Micro- or Small-LBEs; or 
2) A 5% discount to a joint venture with Micro- and/or Small-LBE 

participation that equals or exceeds 35%, but is under 40%; or 
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3) A 7.5% discount to a joint venture with Micro- and /or Small-LBE 
participation that equals or exceeds 40%; or 

4) A 10% discount to a certified non-profit entity. 

If applying for a rating discount as a joint venture: The Micro- and /or Small-
LBE must be an active partner in the joint venture and perform work, manage 
the job and take financial risks in proportion to the required level of 
participation stated in the proposal, and must be responsible for a clearly 
defined portion of the work to be performed and share in the ownership, 
control, management responsibilities, risks, and profits of the joint venture.  
The portion of the Micro- and/or Small-LBE joint venture’s work shall be set 
forth in detail separately from the work to be performed by the non-LBE joint 
venture partner. The Micro- and/or Small-LBE joint venture’s portion of the 
contract must be assigned a commercially useful function. 
 
B) An SBA-LBE (U.S. Small Business Administration-LBE) bid discount/rating 
bonus does apply to the procurement of services under this RFP because the 
anticipated Agreement amount is under $10 Million. To obtain the SBA-LBE 
bonus, please complete Form 2A (CMD Contract Participation Form) or Form 
4 (CMD Joint Venture Form) found at this weblink: 
https://sfgov.org/cmd/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid=9812. 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 14B of the City’s Administrative Code, the following 
rating bonus will be in effect for the selection process for this contractor any 
proposers who are certified by CMD as an SBA-LBE: 
 
A 5% rating bonus will be applied to any proposal from an SBA-LBE except 
that the 5% rating bonus shall not be applied at any stage if it would 
adversely affect a Micro- or Small-LBE proposer or a joint venture with LBE 
participation. 
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